Our Case Number: ABP-311468-21 = r’/,’_
ATy

W2 | An
] Bord
2 N/ _1,| Pleanala

Development Applications Unit

The Manager

Development Applications Unit (DAU}
Government Offices

Newtown Road

Co. Wexford

Y35 APS0

Date: 26 July 2022

Re: Proposed Riverine Pedestrian and Cycle Bridge at Station Road, Lifford, Co. Donegal
115m in length between Lifford Co. Donegal and Strabane, Co. Tyrone

Dear Sir/ Madam,

An Bord Pleanala has received your recent submission in relation to the above mentioned proposed
road development and will take it into consideration in its determination of the matter.

Please note that the proposed road development shall not be carried out unless the Board has approved
it or approved it with modifications.

If you have any queries in relation to this matter please contact the undersigned officer of the Board.

Please quote the above mentioned An Bord Pleanala reference number in any correspondence or
telephone contactwith the Board.,

Yours faithfully,

O e

Niamh Thornton
Executive Officer
Direct Line: 01-8737247

HAD3

Teil Tel {01) 858 8100

Glac Aitiuil LoCall 1880 275175

Facs Fax (01) 872 2684 64 Sraid Maoibhride 64 Marlborough Street
Laithrean Gréasain  Webhsite www.pleanalaie Baile Atha Cliath 1 Dublin 1

Riomhphost Email bord @pleanala.ie D01 vao2 D31 Vo02




Niamh Thornton

" T
From: SIBS
Sent: Monday 18 July 2022 12:20
To: Niamh Thornton
Subject: FW: ABP- 311468-21 (Roads) and ABP-311542-21 (177AE)
Attachments: Riverine Community Park DAU Meeting Minutes Final 220401-1.,pdf; 177AE Riverine
DNG Fl.pdf

From: Housing Manager DAU <Manager.DAU@housing.gov.ie>
Sent: Monday 18 July 2022 11:11

To: SIDS <sids@pleanala.ie>

Subject: ABP- 311468-21 (Roads) and ABP-311542-21 {177AE)

| refer to correspondence received in connection with the above.

Attached are heritage-related observations/recommendations of the Department under the stated headings co-
ordinated by the Development Applications Unit,

Regards,

Michael Murphy

Aonad na nlarratas ar Fhorbairt

Development Applications Unit

Oifigi an Rialtais

Dept. of Housing, Local Government & Heritage

Gavernment Offices

Béthar an Bhaile Nua, Loch Garman, Contae Loch Garman, Y35 AP90
Newtown Road, Wexford, County Wexford, Y35 AP90

Tel: 053 9117641



An Roinn Tithfochta,

Rialtais Aititiil agus Oidhreachta
Depattment of Housing,

Local Government and Heritage

Your Ref: ABP- 311468-21 (Roads) and ABP-311542-21 (177AE)
Our Ref: 177AE Riverine DNG

(Please quote in all related correspondence)

18 July, 2022

The Secretary,

An Bord Pleanala,

64 Marlborough Street,
Dublin 1

Referral under Section 51(3)(b) of the Roads Act, 1993 and under Section 226 and
Section 177AE of the Planning and Development Act, 2000, (As Amended):

Applications by Donegal County Council for

1. Construction of a pedestrian and cycle bridge 115m in length between Lifford
and Strabane (the adjacent eastern section of the proposed community park at
Strabane, County Tyrone);

2. Construction of a community park including pavilion, multi-function outdoor
space, play areas, walkways, cycleway, landscaping, access roads and parking,
amenity lighting, maintenance compound, spectator stand, accommodations
works and ancillary works Station Road, Lifford, County Donegal

A chara

The Department refers to the further information correspondence received on 13 June, 2022
with respect to the above referenced and connected applications currently before the Board.

Outlined below are heritage-related observations/recommendations co-ordinated by the
Development Applications Unit under the stated headings.

Nature Conservation

The Divisional Ecologist of the National Parks & Wildlife Service of the Department met with
the applicant and agents on 31 March, 2022. The minutes of that meeting are attached. The
Department have no further observations to make on the further information submitted.

Aonad na nlarratas ar Fhorbairt, Oifigf an Rialtais, Béthair an Bhaile Nua, Loch Garman, Y35 APS0
Development Applications Unit, Government Offices, Newtown Road, Wexford, Y35 APS0
manager.dau@housing.qov.ie www.gov.iefhousing



Underwater Archaeology

Please note that our observations/recommendations as set out in our previous submission
to An Bord Pleanala (16.11.2021) remain applicable.

It is noted that the proposed development area is located 350m north-east of the Zone of
Archaeological Potential for the Recorded Monument DG071-008-—-Historic Town, which is
subject to statutory protection in the Record of Monuments and Places established under
section 12 (Recorded Monuments) of the National Monuments (Amendment) Act 1930-2014.
In addition, the River Finn and River Foyle contain significant underwater cultural heritage
including around fifteen log-boats which have been recovered from the waterways.

The submitted EIAR Addendum includes a summary account of the ouicome of an
Underwater Archaeological Impact Assessment, which included a dive survey (22D0020)
and metal detection survey (22R0081), carried out by Mr Rex Bangerter on 7th and 8th April
2022, and which was undertaken in part response to the archaeological recommendations
of this Department (as co-ordinated by the Development Applications Unit, submission to An
Bord Pleanala 16.11.2021). The summary statement highlights the regular discovery of
logboat finds, totalling 15 in number, having taken place within the immediate environs of the
proposed development area and the dive survey led to the discovery of two further logboat
fragments (Find numbers 22D0020:01 and 22D0020:02). Both were found lying on the
riverbed close to the northwest side of the River Foyle and it is noted that they probably
floated downstream during recent flooding. Both fragments were assessed by Mr Bangerter
and a preliminary record made of them prior to being temporarily relocated to a suitable sub-
tidal section of riverbed outside the proposed development area.

In light of the above the following are the archaeological recommendations of this
Department:

Archaeological Recommendations

1. The Mitigation Measures as described in Section 13.12 of the submitted ‘Addendum
Environmental impact Assessment Report volume 2: EIAR Addendum Text Riverine
Commnunity Park Lifford-Strabane’ (April 2022) shall be implemented in full.

2. As acomponent of the mitigation proposed, archaeological test excavations, undertaken
by an archaeologist licenced under Section 26 of the National Monuments (Amendment)
Act 1930-2104, shall be undertaken at the proposed locations of the western bridge
abutments and other areas where ground disturbances are proposed. Test excavations
are to be undertaken in compliance with a method statement submitted with an
archaeological excavation licence application and with the conditions of any licence
issued and are to take place to the uppermost archaeological horizons only, where they
survive. Where archaeological material is shown to be present, the archaeologist shall
stop works in the affected area to facilitate evaluation and shall notify the NMS, who will
advise further. Please note that all features/archaeological surfaces/objects within the
test trenches are to be hand-cleaned and clearly visible for photographic purposes.
Having completed the work, the archaeologist shall submit a written report fo the
Department of Housing, Local Government and Heritage outlining the results of the {est-
excavations. The report shall include a comprehensive Archaeological Impact
Statement and shall comment on the degree, if any, to which the extent, location and
levels of all proposed works required for the development will affect archaeological
materials. This shall be illustrated with appropriate plans, sections, etc. The
Archaeological Impact Statement shall also include proposals for further mitigatory
measures, where necessary to protect the archaeological heritage. Where
archaeological material, including objects and underwater cultural heritage, is shown to
be present, further mitigatory measures may be recommended by this Department,




these may include relocation and/or redesign (in whole or in part) of the development to S

allow for preservation in situ, excavation (‘preservation by record’} and/or monitoring.
The applicant will be prepared to be advised by the Depariment of Housing, Local
Government and Heritage with regard to these matters.

The Underwater Archaeoclogy Unit of the Department of Housing, Local Government and
Heritage and the Nafional Museum of Ireland shall be consulted in relation to the future
treatment and long-term curation of the logboat fragments 22D0020:01 and 22D0020:02
(described in the document ‘Addendum Environmental Impact Assessment Report
volume 2: EIAR Addendum Text Riverine Commnunity Park Lifford-Strabane’ (April
2022). 1t is also recommended that in addition to the archaeological recording
methodology as out in the above report, that both fragments are scientifically dated and
sampled for wood identification (under licence). The resulis of these analysis shall be
included in a final archaeclogical report which shall issue to this Department.

The services of a suitably qualified and suitably experienced underwater archaeologist
shall be engaged to carry out archaeclogical monitoring of the construction works
programme. The archaeological monitoring shall be licensed by the Department of
Housing, Local Government and Heritage and a detailed method statement shall
accompany the licence application. The method statement shall lay out the monitoring
strategy for each location where works are proposed. A communication strategy is to
form part of the monitoring strategy to ensure full communication is in place between the
monitoring archaeologist and the plant operators at all times during works. The
archaeological personnel undertaking the monitoring will be in a position to monitor
directly afl elements of the works, to ensure they have unobstructed views of the
excavations/other works, and the plant and machinery operators should be prepared to
facilitate the archaeological personnel in the undertaking of their monitoring work. As
part of the Finds Retrieval Strategy in the methodology, all excavated material removed
from the river shall be spread and metal detected (under licence) to assess the artefact-
bearing potential of the deposits. Sufficient archaeological personnel shall be in place to
cover all aspects of the monitoring works. Should potential archaeclogy be identified
during the works, then the consfruction works shall be suspended in that location and
the National Monuments Service shall be netified. Further archaeological works shall be
required. These may include further archaeological assessment, test-excavations,
avoidance/preservation in situ or full excavation (preservation by record). Following the
completion of the archaeological works, reports detailing the outcome of the monitoring
shall be forwarded to the National Monuments Service, as per conditions of
archaeological licences.

You are requested to send any further communications to the Development Applications Unit
(DAU) at manager.dau@housing.gov.ie, or to the following address:

The Manager, Development Appiications Unit (DAU)
Department of Housing, Local Government & Heritage
Government Offices, Newtown Road Wexford Y35 APS0

Is mise le meas,

Michael Murphy,
Administration
Development Applications Unit
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